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From:
To:
Subject: FW: Return Call [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
Date: Monday, 5 December 2016 9:46:54 AM

I just spoke to Richard, he is going to talk to John Jeffreys again to see if he can make Wednesday
(he has other things on, but may be able to rearrange). I raised the possibility of not being
accompanied if they were comfortable with that, and he didn’t sound too keen on it. I said it was
important for us that we get down there this week.

From:  
Sent: Monday, 5 December 2016 9:37 AM
To: 
Subject: FW: Return Call

Sorry I was on phone when you rang previously.
I should be pretty available most of today, except I have a phone hookup from 10.30-11.30 am.
I will not be available for an inspection this Wednesday, as I have a Board meeting in Sydney.

I can make myself available Mon-Wed the following week (12th-14th) or any day except Tuesday

20th in the week leading up to Xmas.

Regards

Richard

From:  
Sent: Friday, 2 December 2016 1:01 PM
To: 
Subject: Return Call

I have tried to return your call but no answer and no message bank ?
I am in and out of range abit today, but give me another try.

Thanks

Richard Taylor  
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From:
To:
Cc:
Subject: RE: Jam Land Response Letter170214.pdf [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
Date: Thursday, 16 February 2017 3:22:53 PM

Dear Mr Taylor,

As discussed, thank you for the response you have provided. The Department will consider your
response and will be in contact with you in due course regarding concerns you have raised.
Please feel free to contact me if you have any queries.

Kind Regards,

A/g Compliance Manager
Compliance Section
Environment Standards Division
Department of the Environment and Energy
GPO Box 787 CANBERRA, ACT 2601

From:  
Sent: Wednesday, 15 February 2017 5:54 PM
To: 'compliance@environment.gov.au' <compliance@environment.gov.au>
Cc: 
Subject: Jam Land Response Letter170214.pdf

Letter re alleged breach of EPBC Act at Corrowong.
Could you please acknowledge receipt of this letter.

Regards

Richard Taylor
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1 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 BACKGROUND 

The Lake Wallace development to be constructed by Cooma Monaro Shire Council  is  located on Pigring 

Creek, approximately 6 kilometres south of Nimmitabel. The project would result in the loss of vegetation 

belonging to the: 

 NSW  EEC  Tablelands  Snow  Gum,  Black  Sallee,  Candlebark  and  Ribbon  Gum  Grassy

Woodland  in  the  South  Eastern  Highlands,  Sydney  Basin,  South  East  Corner  and  NSW

South Western Slopes Bioregions (‘Snow Gum ‐ Candlebark Woodland EEC’), and the

 Commonwealth EEC Natural Temperate Grassland of the Southern Tablelands of NSW and

the Australian Capital Territory (Wet Tussock Grassland association).

Cooma Monaro Shire Council  is the determining authority  for the project, subject to concurrence  from 

the Director‐General of the Office of Environment and Heritage (OEH). The proposal is also a ‘controlled 

action’ which requires approval from the Commonwealth Environment Minister. 

Biodiversity offsets are measures that are used to compensate for the adverse impacts of development. 

Direct offsets are areas of land similar and generally close to the area impacted by a proposal which are 

set aside permanently and managed for conservation to compensate for specific biodiversity impacts. 

A  Biodiversity  Offset  Strategy  was  submitted  with  the  Species  Impact  Statement  (SIS)  for  the  Lake 

Wallace project  (nghenvironmental 2013), which  identifies direct offset  requirements, proposed offset 

sites, site assessment methods, an offset management plan outline and  long  term  tenure and security 

arrangements. It is expected that the strategy will form part of the approval and concurrence conditions 

for the project. Coupled with the mitigation measures for the project, the offsets are intended to ensure 

that biodiversity values are ‘maintained or improved’ at the locality scale. 

The locations of the two offset sites are shown on Figure 1‐1.  

1.2 ASSESSMENT OF THE OFFSET SITES 

The offset site assessment has the following objectives: 

 to  present  field  survey  findings  relating  to  the  condition  of  Snow  Gum  ‐  Candlebark

Woodland and Wet Tussock Grassland at the offset sites

 to  demonstrate  that  the  area  and  quality  requirements  in  relation  to  EEC  offsets  have

been met

 to  provide  a working  information  base  for  the  development  of  an Offset Management

Plan for the offset sites.

The distribution and condition of EEC vegetation at the Lake Wallace block offset site was assessed by Eco 

Logical  Australia  (2011)  as  part  of  the  flora  and  fauna  assessment  for  the  Lake  Wallace  project. 

Vegetation mapping for the site has been refined by Council and the vegetation classification has been 

revised for the REF and SIS prepared by nghenvironmental (2013).  

Eco Logical Australia  (2012) prepared preliminary vegetation mapping and offset assessments over  the 

entire Wallace property, including the southern blocks offset site. This work was used in the development 

of  the  Biodiversity  Offset  Strategy.  In  the  current  study,  nghenvironmental  conducted  surveys  and 
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condition assessments in the southern blocks offset site, resulting in some amendment to the preliminary 

vegetation unit boundaries identified in Eco Logical Australia (2012).  

Compatible  flora  survey  and  condition  assessment methodologies were  used  by  Eco  Logical  Australia 

(2011)  in  the  Lake Wallace  block  and  by  nghenvironmental  in  the  southern  blocks  offset  sites  (refer 

below). 
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2 OFFSET SITE DESCRIPTION 

2.1 PHYSICAL CHARACTERISTICS 

The Lake Wallace block (107.63 hectares) and southern blocks (150.74 hectares) offset sites are located in 

the  Pigring  Creek  ‐  Lake  Wallace  catchment.  The  fourth‐order  Pigring  Creek  forms  part  of  the 

MacLaughlin River and Snowy River catchments. The creek is incised in places and runoff efficiency from 

the catchment is likely to have increased since European settlement.  

The sites occur on granitic soils derived from granodiorite and adamellite (from the Glenbog Suite, part of 

the Devonian Bega Batholith). The soils are non‐dispersive (SMEC 2010) and are characterised by medium 

to course grained clayey sands with a thin topsoil of clayey silt. The topography includes a narrow alluvial 

floodplain and undulating sideslopes, at around 1000 metres above sea level. 

2.2 SOCIAL AND CULTURAL FACTORS 

The offset sites are zoned 1(a) (Rural Zone) in the Cooma Monaro Shire Local Environmental Plan Cooma‐

Monaro  Local  Environment  Plan  1999  –  (Rural).  Land  use  within  the  Pigring  Creek  catchment  is 

predominantly forest and grazing. The catchment contains ten land lots and portions of sixteen additional 

land  lots,  involving  10  owners.  The Monaro  Highway  and  Snowy Mountain  Highway  run  along  the 

western boundary of the sites. Both offset sites are visible from the highways. 

Small  low density Aboriginal artefact scatters and  isolated artefacts manufactured from quartz, silcrete, 

chert and quartzite were recorded at the Lake Wallace block (nghenvironmental 2013). The waterhole on 

Pigring Creek in the south of the Lake Wallace block is a possible birthing site and has Aboriginal cultural 

values (OCHM 2013). 

2.3 VEGETATION AND HABITATS 

The  study  area  supports native  and  exotic  grasslands,  grassy woodland,  and both  grassy  and  shrubby 

open forest communities. The offset sites have been grazed by both cattle and sheep using a set stocking 

regime,  rather  than  rotational  grazing  (A. Wallace,  land  owner,  pers.  comm).  Grazing  affects  natural 

ecosystems  through herbivory, soil  impacts and nutrient concentration. Long  term grazing  impacts are 

likely to include:  

 a decline in the diversity of native forb species

 the replacement of tall warm‐season grasses species with shorter cool‐season grasses

 increasing dominance by introduced annual species with higher grazing intensity

 soil compaction and disturbance (Eddy 2002, Dorrough et al., 2004, Lunt et al. 2007).

Grazing over a long period may have removed or reduced flora sensitive to these impacts such as shrubs, 

legumes and geophytes, particularly if accompanied by fertiliser use. Increased phosphorous through the 

use of  fertiliser  results  in  a progressive  loss of native plant diversity  (Dorrough  et al. 2008, Dorrough 

2012). No superphosphate fertiliser has been applied to the offset sites in the last 30 years (A. Wallace, 

land owner, pers. comm). 

At  the  time  of  survey  the  southern  blocks  site  showed  signs  of  selective  grazing  of  Kangaroo  Grass 

(Themeda triandra), with this species grazed  low over much of the site and reduced to a patchy sward 

between Poa labillardierei tussocks in the east of the site. However, Themeda triandra remains generally 
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widespread  and  dominant  in  grassland  over most  of  the  site  and  a  number  of  grazing  sensitive  and 

quality indicator species are present at both offset sites.  

Tree  cover at  the  sites  includes  remnant  forest, woodland patches  comprising mature older  trees and 

surrounding  regrowth  of  varying  ages,  and mature  paddock  trees.  Hollow‐bearing  trees  are  sparsely 

scattered  at  the  sites. Woodland  and  forest  patches  generally  have  abundant  fallen  logs  and  litter. 

Embedded granitic boulders provide some reptile habitat, and refugia for grazing sensitive plants. Pigring 

Creek and farm dams provide water sources and aquatic habitat for fauna at the sites. 

2.4 LANDSCAPE FACTORS 

2.4.1 Landscape context 

At the 1000 hectare scale centred on the Lake Wallace block, native vegetation makes up approximately 

70%  cover,  and  includes woodland,  forest  and  natural  grassland  (dryland  and Wet  Tussock Grassland 

associations)  (BioBanking  score  13.6).  At  the  100  hectare  scale,  the  landscape  also  comprises 

approximately 70% native vegetation cover (BioBanking score 8.5). The percentage of native vegetation 

cover  at both  scales will be  slightly higher  for  the  southern blocks  site. The  adjacent  remnant  area  is 

scored as ‘very large’, based on the area of the patches and the Mitchell Landscape % clearing estimate. 

The site is contiguous with a large area of grassy and shrubby forest vegetation to the east, and natural 

grassland to the west of the study area.  

2.4.2 Connectivity 

The Snow Gum – Candlebark Woodland EEC is naturally fragmented by habitat, locally restricted to open 

valley floors, margins of frost hollows, footslopes and undulating hills. Extensive clearing for agriculture 

has  increased  the  level  of  fragmentation.  The Wet  Tussock  Grassland  association  of  the  EEC  is  also 

naturally fragmented by a discontinuous distribution on floodplain alluvium along Pigring Creek. 

The offset sites are connected to a large patch of  intact grassy forest to the east, with a linkage greater 

than  500 metres wide  (likely  to  be  BioMetric  condition  class  3).  There  is  stepping  stone  and  direct 

connectivity with a large forest patch to the south of the site. Patchy woodland connectivity is present to 

the west of  the  site. There  is also  riparian  connectivity along Pigring Creek within  the offset  sites and 

between the sites and the MacLaughlin River corridor. 

The  offset  sites  are  located  at  the  western  edge  of  the  north‐south  escarpment  ranges  forest  and 

woodland corridor. The area is also likely to form part of a discontinuous corridor of forest and woodland 

habitat  patches  for  birds migrating  seasonally  between  the  Alps  and  the  coast.  At  the  regional  and 

continental scales, there are two major corridor projects involving land within the local government area; 

the Alps to Atherton corridor and the Kosciuszko to Coast (K2C) corridor (Cooma Monaro Shire Council 

2011). The projects aim to establish connections between habitat patches on public and private land.  

2.5 ENDANGERED ECOLOGICAL COMMUNITIES 

2.5.1 Snow Gum – Candlebark Woodland EEC 

This EEC occupies an estimated total area of 14,100 hectares which  is estimated to be a 72% decline  in 

area since European settlement (Tozer et al. 2010). The corresponding BioMetric vegetation type Snow 
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Gum ‐ Candlebark Woodland on Broad Valley Flats of the Tablelands and Slopes, South Eastern Highlands 

has  a  clearing  estimate  of  95%  (DECCW  2008a).  Clearing  for  agriculture  has  also  fragmented  the 

community. Less than 4,000 hectares is currently represented in conservation reserves in NSW (Crooks in 

litt. 2009  in NSW Scientific Committee 2011). The community  is threatened by climate change, clearing, 

fragmentation,  fertilizer  application,  tree  dieback,  trampling  and  grazing  by  domestic  livestock, weed 

invasion and altered fire regimes (NSW Scientific Committee 2011). 

Priday (2007) notes that Snow Gum Woodlands have been extensively modified, cleared and fragmented 

in Cooma Monaro Shire. Tozer et al. (2006) map more than 4,000 hectares of Southern Tablelands Flats 

Forest to the immediate north and south of the study area, some of which is likely to comprise the local 

occurrence of the EEC  (Eco Logical Australia 2011). The 2008 Regional State of the Environment report 

(OCSE 2008)  indicates  that  there are 860 hectares of  the Southern CRA community 146 Tableland Dry 

Herb/Grass Woodland in the CMSC LGA, which is likely to be one of the communities which make up the 

EEC. This community is vulnerable and poorly reserved in the LGA (OACE 2008).  

Preliminary  vegetation mapping  of  the Wallace  property  undertaken  by  Eco  Logical  Australia  (2012) 

indicates approximately 169 hectares of Snow Gum – Candlebark Woodland EEC as structural woodland, 

27 hectares as high quality secondary grassland and 261 hectares as low quality secondary grassland. The 

EEC is likely to extend along the Pigring Creek and MacLaughlin River valleys, and adjacent valley areas.  

2.5.2 Natural Temperate Grassland (Wet Tussock Grassland association) 

The pre‐European and current extent of the Wet Tussock Grassland association is not known (Rehwinkel 

pers comm. 2010  in Eco Logical Australia 2011) For the Southern CRA region, Gellie  (2005) estimates a 

pre‐1750 area of 11,700 hectares, an extant area of 2,500 ha, percentage cleared 79% and 85 ha (1%) in 

conservation  reserves  for  his  corresponding  Vegetation  Group  148  Tableland  Tussock 

Grassland/Sedgeland. 

The BioMetric vegetation type River Tussock ‐ Tall Sedge ‐ Kangaroo Grass Moist Grasslands of the South 

Eastern Highlands has a clearing estimate of 95% (DECCW 2008a). The association occurs at Reedy Creek 

TSR, Logans TSR and Rosewood TSR, Wet Lagoon and Mulligans Flat. It  is reserved  in Deua NP, Tinderry 

NR and Yaouk NR, with very minor occurrence at Turallo NR. It is also found on Nature Conservation Trust 

covenanted land in the upper Shoalhaven River, and at the Scottsdale Bush Heritage Reserve near Cooma 

(OEH 2011). The 2008 Regional State of the Environment report (OCSE 2008) indicates that there are 340 

hectares  of  the  analogous  Southern  CRA  community  148  Tableland  Tussock 

Grassland/Sedgeland/Woodland  in the CMSC LGA. This community  is vulnerable and poorly reserved  in 

the LGA (OACE 2008).  

The size and distribution of the  local occurrence of the EEC  is similarly not known, but appears  likely to 

extend  along  the  Pigring  Creek  and MacLaughlin  River  valleys,  and  other  valley  areas  in  the  locality. 

Preliminary  vegetation mapping  shows  that  there  is  approximately  15  hectares  of  the Wet  Tussock 

Grassland association on the Wallace property (Eco Logical Australia 2012). 



Offset site assessment 
LAKE WALLACE STORAGE DAM AND ASSOCIATED INFRASTRUCTURE 

5487 Final v1.0  7

3 OFFSET SITE SURVEY 

3.1 METHODS 

3.1.1 General 

Flora survey 

The study area at both offset sites was stratified into relatively homogeneous vegetation units based on 

BioMetric  vegetation  types  (DECCW  2008a),  variations  in  structure  (grassland  and  woodland)  and 

groundcover quality (low and high quality). A modified Braun‐Blanquet cover scoring system was used to 

survey 20 metre x 20 metre quadrats. Map references are provided in GDA 94 datum. 

Condition assessment 

Grassy ecosystem quality has been measured using the grassy ecosystem site value assessment method 

developed by Rehwinkel (2007a). The assessment method applies a ‘Floristic Value Score’ to grassy sites 

based on the number, density and significance of species recorded in 400 m2 quadrats. Site condition has 

also been assessed by comparison with condition benchmarks developed for each BioMetric vegetation 

class  or  type  (DECCW  2008b).  Benchmarks  are  quantitative  measures  that  describe  the  range  of 

variability  in  condition  of  vegetation  with  relatively  little  evidence  of  alteration,  disturbance  or 

modification by humans since 1750 (DECCW 2011).  

3.1.2 Lake Wallace block offset site 

The  location and methods used by Eco Logical Australia on 15‐17 November 2010  in  the Lake Wallace 

block  are  detailed  in  the  Species  Impact  Statement  for  the  Lake Wallace  project  (nghenvironmental 

2013). The flora survey used a combination of random meanders (after Cropper 1993) and at least one 20 

metre x 20 metre quadrat in each vegetation unit. Consistent with Rehwinkel (2007b), sites generating a 

Floristic Value  Score of 4 or greater were  considered  to be high  condition and anything below 4,  low 

condition  (Ryan  Smithers  ELA  pers.  comm.).  Additional  Floristic  Value  Scores  for  structural woodland 

vegetation were calculated by nghenvironmental for this report using Eco Logical Australia quadrat data. 

An  additional  plot was  surveyed  in  the  far  south  of  the  Lake Wallace  block  by  nghenvironmental  to 

improve survey coverage (site NG1).  

3.1.3 Southern blocks offset site 

Each unit was  inspected on foot prior to the plot survey. The field measurement of condition attributes 

was  based  on  the  50 metre  x  20 metre  and  nested  20 metre  x  20 metre  plot  and  transect  layout 

described  in  the  BioMetric  3.1  Operational  Manual  (DECCW  2011).  Native  plant  richness,  native 

overstorey and understorey structure and  floristics, exotic plant cover,  tree hollows and coarse woody 

debris were recorded. Consistent with the Lake Wallace block offset site, the grassy ecosystem site value 

method developed by Rehwinkel (2007a) was used to assess vegetation condition. High and  low quality 

secondary  grassland  were  arbitrarily  distinguished  based  on  relative  Floristic  Value  Scores  and  the 

dominance/co‐dominance of Themeda triandra.  
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3.3 RESULTS 

3.3.1 Lake Wallace block offset site 

The locations of the representative survey plots and EEC vegetation units mapped by Eco Logical Australia 

and Council  in the Lake Wallace block are shown on Figure 3‐5. Map references for the survey sites are 

provided in Appendix A. 

EEC vegetation  

Snow Gum ‐ Candlebark Woodland on Broad Valley Flats of the Tablelands and Slopes, South Eastern 
Highlands (‘Snow Gum ‐ Candlebark Woodland’) 

This vegetation community includes secondary grassland areas originally mapped in Eco Logical Australia 

(2011a and 2012b) as  the Kangaroo Grass  ‐ Snowgrass Tussock Grassland on Slopes and Ridges of  the 

Tablelands, South Eastern Highlands. The  community  is mapped  in  three units; high quality  secondary 

grassland, low quality secondary grassland and structural woodland. 

The high quality  secondary  grassland  is dominated by  the native  grasses Wheatgrass  (Elymus  scaber), 

Corkscrew Grass (Austrostipa scabra) and Wallaby Grasses (Rytidosperma spp). A relatively diverse range 

of  native  forbs  and  other  graminoids  are  present  and  in  places  abundant.  The  low  quality  secondary 

grassland  has  lower  native  forb  diversity  and  abundance  and  is  dominated  by  Corkscrew  Grass 

(Austrostipa scabra). The structural woodland carries Snow Gum (Eucalyptus pauciflora) and Black Sallee 

(E.  stellulata) with  occasional  larger  Candlebarks  (Eucalyptus  rubida).  The  groundcover  is  generally  a 

diverse mix of native graminoids and forbs, with low shrubs. 

An  additional  survey plot  conducted by nghenvironmental  in  the  far  south of  the offset  site has high 

quality secondary grassland dominated by Themeda triandra and Poa sieberiana. 

The structural woodland plot survey data shows high levels of diversity, with a number of significant flora 

species  including  the  NSW  threatened  species  Diuris  pedunculata  at  site  246.  The  two  high‐scoring 

woodland lots are located outside of the impact area of the Lake Wallace project. 

River Tussock – Tall Sedge – Kangaroo Grass Moist Grasslands of the South Eastern Highlands (‘Wet 
Tussock Grassland’) 

This community occupies riparian flats, lower slopes and drainage lines, dominated by River Tussock (Poa 

labillardierei) with a range of native sedges, rushes and forbs.  

Condition assessment 

Based on the Floristic Site Value scores, the Snow Gum ‐ Candlebark structural woodland vegetation is in 

very good condition. Secondary grassland  (high quality)  is  in generally good condition. The  low quality 

secondary  grassland  and  the Wet  Tussock  Grassland  generate  lower  Floristic  Site  Value  scores,  but 

remain dominated by native grasses with a high diversity of native forbs. BioMetric condition and Floristic 

Site Value scores for EEC vegetation at the Lake Wallace block offset site is summarised in Table 3‐2. 
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EEC vegetation 

Snow Gum ‐ Candlebark Woodland on Broad Valley Flats of the Tablelands and Slopes, South Eastern 
Highlands (‘Snow Gum ‐ Candlebark Woodland’) 

Consistent with the Lake Wallace block assessment, the community  is mapped  in three units; high and 

low quality secondary grassland and structural woodland. 

The vegetation is in generally good condition, with widespread dominance or sub‐dominance of Themeda 

triandra. The high quality secondary grassland is dominated by Themeda triandra, with a diverse range of 

native  forbs  and  several  regionally  and  nationally  significant  species  (refer  section  3.3.3).  Shrubs  are 

generally uncommon in grassland areas. The low quality secondary grassland is present as: 

 a wetter and more gently undulating area in the far south of the offset site dominated by

Microlaena stipoides, Rytidosperma pilosum, Poa labillardierei and Poa sieberiana

 heavily grazed areas on  the  ridge  crest beside  the highway  in  the west of  the  site with

Microlaena stipoides and Rytidosperma laeve

 a more  extensive  area  dominated  by Microlaena  stipoides,  Rytidosperma  sp  and  Poa

labillardierei  to  the  east  of  Pigring  Creek.  Themeda  triandra  is  still  present  as  a  sub‐

dominant in much of this area.

The structural woodland occurs as discrete patches comprising older mature trees (Eucalyptus pauciflora, 

E. rubida,  E.  stellulata)  10‐12 metres  tall  and  surrounding  4‐6 metre  tall  regeneration.  Groundcover

quality is generally good, except in localised stock camp areas.

River Tussock – Tall Sedge – Kangaroo Grass Moist Grasslands of the South Eastern Highlands (‘Wet 
Tussock Grassland’) 

The Poa  labillardierei Wet Tussock Grassland occupies an alluvial strip along Pigring Creek, and an area 

along an  impeded  tributary  in  the east of  the  site. This  community has naturally  lower native  species 

diversity than dry grassland associations and the recorded richness levels are consistent with vegetation 

in good condition. Considering the moist and fertile nature of this habitat, the vegetation has low cover 

and diversity of exotic species. 

The  distribution  of  the  EEC  vegetation  units  initially mapped  by  Eco  Logical  Australia  and  revised  by 

nghenvironmental for the southern blocks offset site are shown on Figure 3‐5. 

Condition assessment 

Based on the Floristic Site Value scores, the Snow Gum ‐ Candlebark structural woodland and secondary 

grassland (high quality) are in very good condition. The secondary grassland (low quality) generates lower 

Floristic Site Value scores, but remains dominated by native grasses with a high diversity of native forbs. 

The Wet Tussock Grassland  is  in good condition at the site. BioMetric condition and Floristic Site Value 

scores for EEC vegetation at the Lake Wallace block offset site are summarised in Table 3‐4. 

Note  that  the  survey  site GH3 has been  retained within  the high quality  category  for  the purposes of 

vegetation mapping  despite  a  low  Floristic  Site  Value  score  because  of  the  dominance  of  Themeda 

triandra and its lower slope position between higher quality dry grassland and Wet Tussock Grassland. 
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Impacted  vegetation  is  likely  to  be  similar  to  vegetation  at  the  offset  sites  in  terms  of  BioMetric 

community benchmarks (refer section 3.3). EEC vegetation at both offset sites compare similarly with the 

benchmarks.  Based  on  the  Floristic  Site  Value  scores,  structural woodland  vegetation  is  of markedly 

higher quality within the Lake Wallace block compared to the southern blocks, although this vegetation is 

considered to be in good condition in both offset sites. In contrast, secondary grassland in the southern 

blocks  offset  site  produce  significantly  better  Floristic  Site Value  scores  than  the  secondary  grassland 

vegetation likely to be affected by the proposal. Similarly, the Natural Temperate Grassland (Wet Tussock 

association)  vegetation  in  the  southern  blocks  offset  site  is  in  better  condition  than  the  vegetation 

impacted by the proposed works, in terms of Floristic Site Value scores. 

Based  on  the  survey  results,  comparative  Floristic  Site  Value  scores  and  comparison with  BioMetric 

community benchmarks,  the EEC vegetation  in  the Lake Wallace block and southern blocks offset sites 

meets the quality requirements for offsetting the impacts of the Lake Wallace development. 

4.3 COMMONWEALTH OFFSETS ASSESSMENT GUIDE 

The  Commonwealth  Offsets  Assessment  Guide  is  a  decision  support  spreadsheet  used  to  estimate 

impacts and offsets for threatened species and ecological communities. The overarching test of the EPBC 

Act environmental offsets policy and the Offsets Assessment Guide is that offsets must deliver an overall 

conservation  outcome  that  improves  or  maintains  the  viability  of  the  relevant  protected  matter 

(DSEWPAC 2012b). 

The Offsets Assessment Guide has been applied to the Lake Wallace project and two offset sites for the 

Natural Temperate Grassland EEC (Wet Tussock Grassland association). The guide indicates that the Lake 

Wallace block and southern blocks sites offset over 100% of the impacts of the Lake Wallace project, and 

therefore  meet  the  ‘maintain  or  improve’  test.  The  inputs  used  for  the  guide  spreadsheet,  and 

justifications for their selection, are discussed below. 

EEC impact area and offset quality 

In the absence of quantitative criteria for the guide, a relative quality rating of ‘6’ for the impact area was 

chosen because the: 

 vegetation met all of the BioMetric benchmarks for the community

 structure and floristics match the EEC description for the sub‐community

 ecological  context of  the EEC  at  the  site  is  favourable  (sited  in  a  relatively undisturbed

catchment within a complex of grassland, woodland and forest in good condition).

The slightly higher condition score of  ‘7’ was chosen  for the southern blocks offset site because  it also 

met BioMetric condition benchmarks, but has significantly higher floristic site value scores; refer section 

3.3.2 above. Without management as an offset site, EEC quality can be expected to degrade due to the 

impacts of weeds, grazing and pest animals. 

The  future  quality  of  the  EEC  at  the  offset  site  was  entered  as  ‘8’  because  it  is  considered  that 

appropriate management  of  the  site  will measurably  improve  the  condition  of  the  EEC,  particularly 

assisting the recovery of grazing sensitive species through the exclusion of stock from the community.  

Time horizon 

The  offset  site  would  be  established  in  perpetuity  and  the  offset  management  arrangements  are 

expected to affect management of the site indefinitely. A conservative 10 year risk‐related time horizon 

has been selected in the spreadsheet.  
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Risk of loss without offset and with offset 

Threatening  processes  are  operating  at  the  offset  site,  primarily  grazing,  weeds  and  pigs.  Without 

protection as an offset site, there is a significant risk that weeds will steadily increase and displace native 

species over the 10 year timeframe, as has happened in the community elsewhere.  

The persistence of the EEC  in such good condition under a commercial grazing regime  is unusual  in the 

region. The Wet Tussock Grassland community has a clearing estimate of 95% (DECCW 2008). Remnants 

are  subject  to nutrient  run‐on  from  adjacent  fertilised  crops  and pastures,  small  scale  clearing, weed 

invasion and grazing pressures (OEH 2011).  

Without  protection,  the  risk  of  the  loss  of  the  community,  or  degradation  that would  result  in  the 

vegetation no longer forming part of the EEC over a 10 year timeframe is estimated to be 30%. This risk is 

heightened  by  current  uncertainty  regarding  future  ownership  and management  if  the  sites  are  not 

established as offsets. 

The  risk of  loss or significant degradation  if  the site  is managed as an offset site  is considerably  lower, 

estimated to be 10%. The reasons for this reduced risk include: 

 the exclusion of grazing and the control of rabbits and feral pigs under offset management

will be beneficial for the community, and directly address threatening processes

 damaging practices  such  as  fertiliser  application,  cultivation, overgrazing  and  sowing of

exotic grasses and legumes would not be permitted

 regular  ecological  monitoring  provides  for  early  detection  of  threats  and  responsive

management

 Council expect to purchase the land required for the offsets, and lease this land for use in

accordance  with  the  approved  Offset  Management  Plan  and  the  legal  protection

instrument establishing the offset site.

Overall confidence in result 

An overall confidence figure of ‘82%’ was selected because: 

 the condition scores are based on quantitative field survey results

 field records and observations also document active threatening processes at the site

 the  threatening  processes  operating  at  the  site  are  readily manageable  using  standard

equipment and methods

 as  landlords, Council would be able  to  supervise  land use and Offset Management Plan

implementation by the lessee

 regular  ecological monitoring  and  reporting would  track  the  condition  of  the  EEC,  the

status of threatening processes and any unexpected trends or impacts

 legal protection and security would be provided for the EEC via lease conditions and an in

perpetuity legal protection mechanism attached to the land.
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5 CONCLUSION 
The  Lake Wallace  block  and  southern  blocks  offset  sites  contain  areas  of  Snow  Gum  –  Candlebark 

Woodland EEC and Natural Temperate Grassland (Wet Tussock Grassland) EEC in good condition.  

The Lake Wallace block and southern blocks offset sites conserve generally equivalent or better condition 

vegetation  than  that affected by  the Lake Wallace development,  in  terms of Floristic Site Value  scores 

and  community benchmarks. The Snow Gum  ‐ Candlebark woodland at both offset  sites meets native 

species  richness,  native  groundcover  and  shrub  cover  benchmarks.  The  Wet  Tussock  Grassland 

vegetation meets all of the BioMetric benchmarks at both sites. 

For  the NSW  Snow Gum – Candlebark Woodland EEC,  the  sites would protect 42.40 hectares of high 

quality  secondary  grassland, 39.78 hectares of  low quality  secondary  grassland  and 28.06 hectares of 

structural woodland, representing an overall offset ratio of 18.5:1. 9.71 hectares of the Commonwealth 

Natural Temperate Grassland EEC (Wet Tussock Grassland association) would be protected, achieving a 

5.2:1 offset ratio. 

The offset sites meet both the area and quality requirements for offsetting the EEC  impacts of the Lake 

Wallace development. 

The survey results reflect the impacts of long term grazing at the offset sites. However, both sites retain 

native vegetation cover, major structural and functional flora species and a number of rare and depleted 

species. Woodland patches and rock outcrops clearly operate as refugia for grazing sensitive flora species 

at the sites.  

The sites show good potential for recovery and improvement in condition over time. The location of the 

sites within  the Lake Wallace catchment, contiguous with  the Lake Wallace development site and with 

good connectivity  to  surrounding  forest and woodland,  further  increases  the value and viability of  the 

blocks as offset sites for the project. 
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From:

Sent: Friday, 30 June 2017 2:35 PM

To:

Cc:

Subject: Alleged clearing of nationally listed grassland at Corrowong - compensatory actions 

[SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Attachments: Corro_170630_To Jam Land_site inspection with CAS2691.pdf; Corro_

170630_letter to Jam Land_site inspection with Att1_CAS2691.docx

Dear Mr Taylor, 

Please find attached correspondence from the Department in relation to proposed discussions with  

at the property on  10 July. 

Happy to discuss, 

Senior Compliance Officer 
Compliance Section 
Environment Standards Division 
Department of the Environment and Energy
GPO Box 787 CANBERRA, ACT 2601 
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From:

Sent: Wednesday, 5 July 2017 8:32 PM

To:

Cc:

Subject: RE: Alleged clearing of nationally listed grassland at Corrowong - compensatory 

actions [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

 

Meeting is OK for the 10th July. 

I will also attend. 

Could you please advise a time and place to meet. 

Regards 

Richard 

From:   

Sent: Friday, 30 June 2017 2:35 PM 

To:  

Cc:  

Subject: Alleged clearing of nationally listed grassland at Corrowong - compensatory actions [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED] 

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

Sent: Tuesday, 22 August 2017 4:54 PM

To:

Cc:

Subject: RE: Alleged clearing of nationally listed grassland at Corrowong - compensatory 

actions [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Attachments: Corro_170822_to Jam Land_Confirmation of mapped area_offset 

acceptability_Att_CAS2691.pdf; Corro_170822_to Jam Land_Confirmation of mapped 

area_offset acceptability_CAS2691.pdf

Dear Mr Taylor, 

Please find attached correspondence from the Department following our meeting at the site on 10 July. Hard copies 

have been mailed to you. I’ll give you a call tomorrow to discuss. 

Kind Regards, 

Senior Compliance Officer | Compliance Section 

Office of Compliance 
Department of the Environment and Energy 
GPO Box 787 Canberra ACT 2601 
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From:
To:
Cc: Geoff Richardson
Subject: RE: Urgent request for talking points - NTGSEH listing [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
Date: Thursday, 16 February 2017 2:51:43 PM
Attachments: Letter submission - NSW OEH - 150724.pdf

Public consultation material - consulation guide.docx

Hi 

See below for background and talking points. There’s probably a bit more detail in here than
required, but I’ve put it all together for a complete picture.

For context, I’ve included reference to the Corrowong compliance case, as we assume this query
is related to that investigation.

Regards,

| Project Officer | Ecological Communities Section | Protected Species and
Communities Branch 
Department of the Environment and Energy 
GPO Box 787 Canberra ACT 2601 | 

(For more about threatened ecological communities and our latest newsletter, see:
http://www.environment.gov.au/biodiversity/threatened/communities.html)

Previous listing and the revised listing

· The native grasslands in the Southern Tablelands region of NSW and the ACT have been
listed as a threatened ecological community since the start of the EPBC Act (16 July 2000),
and before that under the Commonwealth Endangered Species Protection Act 1992.

· The Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands ecological community was
listed on 6 April 2016 as a result of a review of the original listing, which was known as
Natural temperate grassland of the Southern Tablelands of NSW and the Australian Capital
Territory. This review was conducted to take account of new information, in line with the
2006 National Recovery Plan for this ecological community.

· The revised listing added a ‘minimum condition threshold’, which identifies which areas of
grassland are protected by the EPBC Act. Low quality grasslands that do not meet this
threshold are not protected, whereas some of these areas would have been included in the
previous listing.

· The grasslands on the property in question (Corrowong locality) were included within the
boundary of the previous listing, as well as the revised listing. The property includes areas of
native grasslands that meet the revised listing (requiring high quality of native grasslands),
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and areas of lower quality grasslands. The focus of the compliance investigation, using the
new listing, focussed on the higher quality areas and not the low quality areas that may have
been included under the previous listing.

Consultation

· The original listing, recovery plan and revised listing all went through statutory consultation
processes.

Notification of public consultation on the review of the ecological community listing

· Notification emails were sent to a wide range of stakeholders, including all councils, Local
Land Services, and state agencies where the ecological community occurs, and the National
Farmers’ Federation and NSW Farmers’ Association 

). These Farmers’ groups were contacted by the
Department’s Environment Liaison Officer, out posted to the NFF, and the Department met
with the NFF to discuss the listing on more than one occasion.

· Reminder emails were also sent to the same groups as the end of the public consultation
period approached.

· A farmer specific consultation guide (attached) was available as part of the consultation
package, explaining the listing review process and what this meant for farming activities.

Notification of the listing event (6 April 2016)

· Following listing, email notifications were also sent.

Information guide on the ecological community for landholders

· An information guide was finalised and released in 2016. This was developed with the
assistance of the NFF.

· The information guide is designed to assist land managers, owners and occupiers as well as
environmental assessment officers and consultants to identify, assess and manage the
Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands ecological community. This
guide also explains why the listing was revised and relationships between the previous and
updated listing.

· Hardcopies of the information guide (including a link to the electronic version on the
website) were sent to all councils and South East Local Land Service offices where the
ecological community occurs. For the Corrowong/Delegate region, this included the Snowy-
Monaro Regional Council office in Cooma, and the South East LLS office in Bombala. The
letter that accompanied these guides invited the offices to “Please pass this letter and the
enclosed brochures on to relevant environment or biodiversity officers, and/or your
organisation’s reception/visitors area”.

· The information guide explains that, “Only activities that are likely to have a significant
impact on the ecological community need to be considered under national environment law
—activities such as large new developments, works or infrastructure. For example,
permanently clearing areas of high-quality native vegetation for mining and energy
infrastructure, changed agricultural production (e.g. cropping), telecommunication cabling,
roadworks or residential/industrial subdivision.”
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Awareness of Natural Temperate Grassland listing

· The national Recovery Plan included work to increase awareness of the ecological
community, including the establishment of the Southern Tablelands Conservation
Management Network and work in the early-mid 2000s by WWF.

· The attached letter from NSW OEH also summarises work they have done to increase
community engagement with the listed ecological community (see pages 4-5) and working
collaboratively with partners (page 7).

· South East Local Land Services acknowledge the National Landcare Programme and EPBC
Act in their 2016-21 strategic plan.

· South East Local Land Services has received money through the National Landcare
Programme to administer grants to restore the NTG EC, among other projects.

From:  
Sent: Thursday, 16 February 2017 9:35 AM
To: 

Cc: 
Subject: Urgent request for talking points - NTGSEH listing [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Hi 
As discussed, it appears that a NTGSEH case was discussed in parliament yesterday, and we have
been asked to urgently draft some dot points about the listing. Can you please provide a point
about the amount of engagement, consultation and education (particularly with the farming
community) that was undertaken in the listing process.

This is a handwritten note we got from a phone call with the Minister’s office:

‘Possible compliance action

South East Highland Grassland

- Hunt made a change (listing status priority)
- What was change, when, why, implications

ACT/NSW Border’

Draft dot points:
· The Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands ecological community

was listed in the Critically Endangered category on 6 April 2016.
· Between 16 July 2000 and 5 April 2016, the extent of this ecological community was

included with the listed endangered Natural Temperate Grassland of the Southern
Tablelands of NSW and the Australian Capital Territory ecological community.

· The Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands ecological community
came about as a result of a review of the Natural temperate grassland of the Southern
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Tablelands of NSW and the Australian Capital Territory (listed as endangered in 2000).
This review was conducted to take account of new information, and to recognise a
broader distribution than was acknowledged in the original listing.

· Dot point about consultation, engagement and education

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
Subject: FW: Monaro grasslands [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
Date: Monday, 6 March 2017 8:50:09 AM
Attachments: RE Urgent request for talking points - NTGSEH listing SECUNCLASSIFIED.msg

FYI – response sent last week to compliance re questions about the Monaro grasslands uplisting. 

From: Richardson, Geoff 
Sent: Thursday, 2 March 2017 4:22 PM
To: 
Cc: 

Oxley, Stephen <Stephen.Oxley@environment.gov.au>
Subject: RE: Monaro grasslands [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Hi 

Please find below dot points prepared by  and cleared by me relating to the
questions from the Minister’s office on the SEH grassland uplisting. I note we previously provided
some points about our consultation process – see attached email. I’ve drawn on these for some
points below, but you might find other info in the email useful.

Who made the decision to uplist the EC – Hunt, Frydenberg or Delegate?
· The uplisting decision was made by Greg Hunt, as Minister for Environment at

the time.

We have received comments that implementation of the revised listing has been problematic.  In
particular, it can lead to a mosaic of protected and non-protected areas inside existing paddocks
and regarding the exclusion of clover from the 50% threshold.  Can you provide any comments
around practicality of implementation?
· Listed ecological communities occur wherever a patch of native vegetation in the

landscape meets the diagnostic features, plus the condition thresholds for that
community. This is similar to identifying habitat requirements for particular listed
threatened species except that it applies to a described assemblage of species,
usually a certain vegetation type.

· A mosaic distribution is typical for many ecological communities because of: 1)
variability in landscape features – for instance grasslands often form in frost hollows
and sites of cold air drainage; and 2) variability in past management history – for
instance the degree of grazing, ploughing and fertiliser addition affects the
composition and diversity of grassland species among and within sites.

· Both the original and revised listings constituted a ‘mosaic’ as the community was
always naturally restricted in where it can occur. However, the revised listing
introduced a ‘minimum condition threshold’, that clarifies which areas of grassland
should be protected by the EPBC Act. Low quality grasslands that do not meet this
threshold are not protected, whereas some of these areas would have been
included in the original listing.

· Large areas that have more than 50% vegetation cover of clover (Trifolium spp.),
which is not a native plant, are not part of the grassland ecological community.
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· To be considered part of the listed ecological community, grassland patches must
be at least 0.1 Hectare in size, must have a greater percentage cover of native
plants (including annual and perennial species) than the percentage cover of
perennial exotic species (i.e. >50% native cover), and must meet additional
condition thresholds (e.g. relating to the diversity of non-grass native species, or the
presence of particular ‘indicator species’).

· Detailed information about how to recognise a patch of the grassland and what
condition it might be in are given in the approved conservation advice and the
information guide for the uplisted community. The information guide provides a
flowchart to help landholders determine the condition of the grassland.

Can you please provide overview of consultation and feedback from farmer groups regarding the
uplisting?
· The original listing, recovery plan and revised listing all went through statutory

consultation processes.
· Notification emails about the uplisting were sent to a wide range of stakeholders,

including all councils, Local Land Services, and state agencies where the ecological
community occurs, and the National Farmers’ Federation and NSW Farmers’
Association. These Farmers’ groups also were contacted by the Department’s
Environment Liaison Officer, out posted to the NFF, and the Department met with
the NFF to discuss the listing on more than one occasion. A farmer specific
consultation guide was made available as part of the consultation package,
explaining the listing review process and what this meant for farming activities.

· The NSW Farmers Association did not provide any comment on the proposed
uplisting. The NFF provided a submission noting concerns that further information
would be required to complete the assessment and that landholders may have
difficulty identifying the grassland. The Department replied to the NFF about their
issues.

· A public information guide aimed at helping famers and other landholders
understand the uplisted grassland was prepared and released after the listing. This
guide was developed with the assistance of the NFF.

Let me know if you need anything further

Regards   Geoff
Geoff Richardson
Assistant Secretary  |  Protected Species and Communities Branch 
Department of the Environment and Energy

The Department acknowledges the traditional owners of country throughout
Australia and their continuing connection to land, sea and community. We pay
our respects to them and their cultures and to their elders both past and present.

From:  
Sent: Thursday, 2 March 2017 10:26 AM
To: 
Cc: 

Subject: FW: Monaro grasslands [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
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As discussed , the Ministers office is seeking some quick turnaround on the questions below
regarding the Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands ecological
community.

Questions are:

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

Please send to me as soon as you are able.

All the best

 | A/g Director |
Compliance
Environment Standards Division |
Department of Environment and Energy
GPO Box 787 Canberra ACT 2601

From: Richards, Mark 
Sent: Thursday, 2 March 2017 9:54 AM
To: Collins, Monica <Monica.Collins@environment.gov.au>; 

Cc: de Brouwer, Gordon <Gordon.deBrouwer@environment.gov.au>; Knudson, Dean
<Dean.Knudson@environment.gov.au>; 

 CEBWorkflow <CEBWorkflow@environment.gov.au>;

Subject: RE: Monaro grasslands [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Hi Monica

Can you please clarify the following:

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

Can you please let me know by end of Monday.

Thanks

From: Collins, Monica 
Sent: Tuesday, 28 February 2017 5:14 PM
To: Richards, Mark <Mark.Richards@environment.gov.au>; 

Cc: de Brouwer, Gordon <Gordon.deBrouwer@environment.gov.au>; Knudson, Dean
<Dean.Knudson@environment.gov.au>; 

CEBWorkflow <CEBWorkflow@environment.gov.au>;

Subject: Monaro grasslands [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Hi Mark,

Please see information below as requested.

Monica

General Information on Grasslands

· In the Monaro region of NSW, matters of national environmental significance
protected by the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999
include the critically endangered Natural Temperate Grassland of the South
Eastern Highlands ecological community.

· This grassland ecological community has been protected in the Monaro region
as endangered under the Act since the Act was introduced in 2000, and was up
listed to critically endangered in 2016.

· The revision of the listing of the endangered Natural Temperate Grassland of
the Southern Tablelands of NSW and the Australian Capital Territory to the
critically endangered Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern
Highlands resulted in protection of grasslands in a broader geographic area, but
limits the protection to areas of the highest quality grasslands.

s47F

s47F
s47F

s47F
s47F
s47F
s47F



o Within the extent of the previous listing (Southern Tablelands of NSW and
the ACT), the area protected by the listing (and subsequently the number
of landholders affected) is considered to be reduced. However, the
geographic extent of the new listing is larger than it was for the previous
listing (for example, it now includes parts of Victoria).

· The minimum condition thresholds (see below) contained in the Conservation
Advice for the revised listing allow greater certainty for landholders in
determining whether the Act applies to their proposed actions.

· To be considered the listed ecological community, grassland patches must be at
least 0.1 Hectare in size, must have a greater percentage cover of native
vascular plants (including annual and perennial species) than the percentage
cover of perennial exotic species (i.e. >50% native cover), and must meet
additional condition thresholds (eg relating to the diversity of non-grass native
species, the presence of particular ‘indicator species’ or the floristic value score).
Note - this is a simplified overview of the minimum condition thresholds.

· Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands is listed as critically
endangered under the EPBC Act. The threshold of significance for proposed
activities is dependent on the quality and context of the impacted ecological
community, but is likely to be in the region of 1-10 ha.

Compliance Investigation Background

· The Department is investigating clearing of the Natural Temperate Grassland of
the South Eastern Highlands ecological community at Corrowong in Southern
NSW.

· Corrowong lies within a bioregion that has known occurrences of protected
Natural Temperate Grasslands. These grasslands have been protected since the
EPBC Act came into force in July 2000. The 2016 up listing has not placed any
additional compliance burden on landholders that was not present before the up
listing came into effect.

· The grasslands on the property in question are included within the boundary of
the previous listing, as well as the revised listing. The property includes areas of
native grasslands that meet the revised listing (requiring high quality of native
grasslands), and areas of lower quality grasslands. The focus of the compliance
investigation, using the new listing, focussed on the higher quality areas and not
the low quality areas that may have been included under the previous listing.

Compliance inspection
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· Compliance officers inspected the property with a suitably qualified grassland
ecologist on 16 December 2016 to establish the likely impacts of the alleged
actions.

· The final report from the expert (received 23 January 2017) identified that
approximately 30 ha of the listed critically endangered grassland has been
significantly impacted.

· This matter has been referred to General Counsel Branch to inform the
Department’s  response.

· The Department intends to contact the land owner, offering to meet on site to
discuss how the Act applies, and what the next steps are from both the land
owner’s and the Department’s perspectives.

Monica Collins
Assistant Secretary Compliance and Enforcement
Department of the Environment and Energy
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